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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now we go to the

          3  public, and the first one here to speak is Andy

          4  Scherer. Is he in the house? Andy Scherer.

          5                 Gentlemen, ladies, Chairman Finkel,

          6  will you all leave quietly so we can all proceed? We

          7  want to wrap this Committee up, there is another

          8  committee waiting to get in.

          9                 Mr. Scherer, if you will have a seat

         10  and identify yourself.

         11                 MR. SCHERER: Yes. I am Andrew

         12  Scherer, I am the Director of the Legal Support Unit

         13  at Legal Services for New York City. Good afternoon.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you for

         15  your patience, sir.

         16                 MR. SCHERER: You are very welcome. I

         17  am here to testify about the portion of the HPD

         18  budget that funds anti-eviction and SRO Legal

         19  Services Program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The Chair and

         21  the Council are in tune to these needs. Historically

         22  we have responded to them. I see no reason why they

         23  should change this year. You can be assured that our

         24  values are still in place and we will do all we can.

         25                 MR. SCHERER: I appreciate that very
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          2  much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

          4                 MR. SCHERER: Would you rather have me

          5  skip my prepared testimony?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I would rather

          7  have you skip your prepared testimony. I will gladly

          8  do that. You have it in writing. We really do

          9  sincerely appreciate the work that the Council has

         10  done over the years to restore that money,

         11  unfortunately we face the same problem again this

         12  year.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The Chair and

         14  the Committee, the Council and the leadership have

         15  always been sympathetic to this need.

         16                 MR. SCHERER: I understand that, and I

         17  won't burden you then with my time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         19                 MR. SCHERER: Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now we have

         21  Kevin Ryan, Anne Pasmanack, Jackie Richardson. They

         22  are all from the Community Training and Resources

         23  Center.

         24                 Kevin Ryan, Anne Pasmanack, Jackie

         25  Richardson, are they here? Anne Pasmanack, Kevin
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          2  Ryan, are they here? They are not here.

          3                 Jenny Laurie. Jenny Laurie, is she

          4  here?

          5                 Emily Harris? Bertha Lewis from

          6  ACORN, are they here?

          7                 MS. HARRIS: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Please take a

          9  seat at the table and we will accept your testimony.

         10  And Thomas Allen, is he with you? Those of you with

         11  this group, please have a seat and whoever wants to

         12  take the lead. Speak into the mic and identify

         13  yourself.

         14                 MS. HARRIS: My name is Emily Harris,

         15  I am a resident of East New York and a member of

         16  ACORN and Mutual Housing Association of New York.

         17                 I am here today to ask this Committee

         18  to consider a great situation regarding housing in

         19  East New York.

         20                 As you evaluate the FY 2000 budget,

         21  please evaluate the fact that the Mutual Housing

         22  Association, MHANY, has not been included in the

         23  budget since 1997. Why?

         24                 We believe it is because we do not

         25  agree with the present administration policy on
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          2  housing for lower income New Yorkers.

          3                 We ask that you listen to our issues

          4  and support us in gaining houses for poor people in

          5  East New York. The MHANY Mutual Housing Association

          6  program has been an HPD budgeted program for ten

          7  years, since 1987, when it was eliminated from HPD,

          8  FY '98 budget, fiscal year.

          9                 The Mutual Housing Association of New

         10  York in MHANY had a commitment from HPD since June

         11  1995 to rehabilitate 18 buildings in Crown Heights,

         12  Crown Heights, Bushwick and East New York, in what

         13  was called MHANY Phase 3.

         14                 Initially round three MHANY's

         15  buildings were to be rehabilitated with tax credit

         16  funds, helping to alleviate City and federal

         17  dollars. When Governor Pataki was elected, tax

         18  credit resources to New York City were diminished.

         19  HPD gave MHANY Phase 3 tax credit to other projects

         20  and told MHANY that HPD would fund the MHANY

         21  buildings directly. MHANY had also repaid HPD $1.13

         22  million from the MHANY 2CI and 2C2 projects.

         23                 HPD agreed to make that money

         24  available for Phase 3.

         25                 HPD did fund the MHANY Phase 3
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          2  buildings in Crown Heights and in Bushwick. Since

          3  1997 MHANY has created another 50 affordable housing

          4  units for low and moderate-income families. These

          5  units began as rentals and are converted to

          6  cooperative ownership. The cost to HPD to

          7  rehabilitate 11 buildings in Crown Heights and

          8  Bushwick was approximately 5,127,000. This comes to

          9  1,200 540 (sic) per unit per total development cost.

         10  This number is compared to other HPD developments

         11  around the City. By eliminating the MHANY Program

         12  from HPD budget in 1997, a source of affordable

         13  ownership housing is no longer available for low and

         14  moderate-income New York family housing.

         15                 HPD had slated all small vacant

         16  buildings under ten units for private moderate

         17  income homes ownership programs, such as Home Work,

         18  City Housing and Development homes.

         19                 Finally, the one 1.13 million was not

         20  enough to rehabilitate the Phase 3 East New York

         21  Buildings, and the MHANY organization had to find

         22  development dollars elsewhere.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Ms.

         25  Harris.
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          2                 Anyone else to testify?

          3                 MR. ALLEN: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes, sir. Mr.

          5  Allen. Identify yourself for the record.

          6                 Push the button in, please, activate

          7  the mic.

          8                 MR. ALLEN: Good afternoon. My name is

          9  Thomas Allen, and I also wish to ask for your help

         10  and support for the Mutual Housing Association of

         11  New York. The project that we bring before you today

         12  will save the City over $1 million, and yet the plea

         13  is falling on deaf ears. We wish that we were

         14  included in the FY 2000 budget, but since we are

         15  not, we ask for your support in completing the

         16  project we put before you, which was included in the

         17  1995 budget.

         18                 We are not asking for anything

         19  additional, we only want what is already budgeted

         20  for the MHANY organization as a finance package to

         21  be ready to rehabilitate the vacant building

         22  immediately upon received necessary public approval.

         23                 The Phase 3 East New York MHANY

         24  Project is compared to 6 billion 19 apartments, it

         25  started out as 8 billion 25 units, but MHANY gave 2
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          2  billion back to the HPD to put into the ShopWork

          3  Program. The building are on Lavonia on the elevator

          4  number three train. The project development costs

          5  approximately $1.7 million, financed as follows:

          6                 HPD, 1.2 million. MHANY development

          7  fee from PR project, 303,000. EAB loan for almost

          8  500,000. New York's affordable housing program gone

          9  for 250,000. There are several new homes inactivated

         10  in the community, including neighborhood homes,

         11  HomeWorks, Neomiah Homes, New York Housing

         12  Partnership homes, but all of these programs are for

         13  middle-income families. Low-income people still live

         14  in East New York and still need housing.

         15                 The building will be a loss for low

         16  and middle income, if you do not support this

         17  project.

         18                 MHANY has support for the project

         19  from community president living in immediate

         20  proximity to these vacant buildings, Councilman

         21  Malave-Dilan, Brooklyn Community Board 5, Councilman

         22  Ed Town (sic) MHANY is asking you to ask HPD to

         23  submit the UDAAP document and begin the land review

         24  process at the City Council.

         25                 Support the UDAAP application and let
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          2  the project proceed.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Allen.

          6                 Ms. Lewis, do you have something to

          7  add?

          8                 MS. LEWIS: Yes. My name is Bertha

          9  Lewis, and I am the head organizer for Brooklyn

         10  ACORN, as well as overseeing the Mutual Housing

         11  Association New York Program.

         12                 I was head organizer for Brooklyn,

         13  New York, when the first approval by HPD was done

         14  for MHANY Phase 3.

         15                 We would like to reiterate that in

         16  the prior testimony before this Committee today, it

         17  has become quite apparent that there is a need for

         18  affordable housing for very low-income people in New

         19  York.

         20                 Public housing, as furnished by the

         21  New York City Housing Authority, used to be the

         22  housing of last resort. However, the present

         23  Administration policy toward affordable housing

         24  leaves much to be desired.

         25                 We understand that there may be
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          2  political differences, and we understand that people

          3  from time to time change their minds, however, the

          4  poor needing affordable housing in New York City

          5  does not change.

          6                 When HPD funded MHANY in Bushwick and

          7  in Crown Heights, we had all the necessary documents

          8  and this was all part of one large project. Why this

          9  particular piece of land in East New York should be

         10  held up because one City Councilperson will not

         11  issue an updated letter, we would like to know.

         12                 We are asking for this Committee, as

         13  well as other City Council members, to please push

         14  the UDAAP process forward and to help us secure

         15  these last buildings. With 220,000 people on a

         16  waiting list waiting for affordable housing, it

         17  seems to me we should not hold up 20 affordable

         18  housing apartments in East New York.

         19                 If there are any questions about this

         20  project, I would be happy to answer them.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I suggest you

         22  speak with HPD, as well.

         23                 MS. LEWIS: We spoke with HPD, and we

         24  saw Commissioner Roberts today. Commissioner Roberts

         25  said that of course City Council has to approve. We

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            12

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS PUBLIC SESSION

          2  have had support from other City Council --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The City Council

          4  has to approve?

          5                 MS. LEWIS: That's what he said.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, I think he

          7  may be a bit --

          8                 MS. LEWIS: Disingenuous.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, he may be

         10  somewhat mistaken in his conclusions, but we

         11  certainly will do all we can to be helpful under the

         12  circumstances.

         13                 I want to thank you for waiting and

         14  taking time to testify today.

         15                 MS. LEWIS: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, going back

         17  down to Joseph Garver. Is he here, Joseph Garver?

         18                 MR. GARVER: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Louanna

         20  Robinson. Is she here, Louanna Robinson?

         21                 MS. ROBINSON: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Come on Ms.

         23  Robinson. Then I will go back to the top of the

         24  list. So, those whose names have been called -- yes,

         25  sir, your name is?
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          2                 MR. GARVER: Good afternoon, Mr.

          3  Chairman, members of the Council, my name is Joseph

          4  Garver. I have been a resident of public housing

          5  since 1957. From 1957 to 1976 at Douglas Houses, and

          6  from 1976 to the present in Independence Towers.

          7  Over the years I have been involved as a tenant

          8  association leader at various magnitude. At

          9  Independence Towers I was second vice president,

         10  first vice president and president and at the

         11  Citywide Tenants Advisory Council I was a project

         12  representative, district delegate and Brooklyn

         13  Borough Chairperson for the Tenants Advisory

         14  Council.

         15                 I am presently the first vice

         16  president of police service area number three,

         17  resident police council, which is the equivalent of

         18  a community council in a precinct.

         19                 I would like to this afternoon speak

         20  to you to highlight some concerns and to refute some

         21  statements which Chairman Finkel made, as well as to

         22  add some new concerns, which I hope should be

         23  transmitted to former Deputy Mayor Peter Powers,

         24  serving now as a consultant or an overseer to

         25  prepare a report for the Mayor of the
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          2  state-of-the-art New York City Housing Authority.

          3                 Fortunately, in my opinion, the

          4  Housing Authority is not operating efficiently,

          5  effectively or cost effective. It is engaged in

          6  various acts of malfeasance, misfeasance and

          7  non-feasance.

          8                 During the presentation earlier, I

          9  had not heard any talk about the effect of the

         10  police merger, okay, on resident services. Since the

         11  merger of the Housing Authority Police Department in

         12  1995, there has been a marked decrease in uniformed

         13  police service officers at the respective

         14  developments. Resident leaders throughout the City

         15  at meetings which I attend claim you cannot see the

         16  number of police officers as you did prior to

         17  merger.

         18                 In addition, managers complain that

         19  the police reports, the UF 61, the complaint

         20  reports, as well as the field reports are not being

         21  submitted timely to the managers as they were prior

         22  to merger.

         23                 In addition, there is a lack of

         24  intelligence gathering that the Housing Police was

         25  able to gather prior to the merger as to now. When
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          2  the merger hearings were being held in 1994, I

          3  recall Paul Graziano indicated that if the same

          4  level of police service would not be held subsequent

          5  to merger, then he would ask HUD not to pay the

          6  bill.

          7                 I would strongly suggest that this

          8  body, or any other Council group, okay, hold a

          9  oversight hearing to determine the level of police

         10  effectiveness on the merger.

         11                 Now, let me give you an example,

         12  okay, how bad things are.

         13                 In police service area number three,

         14  which is located at 25 Central Avenue, the clock in

         15  the training room, this is the room where the

         16  tenants, we meet once a month, has been broken for

         17  over a year and a half. If we are part of the New

         18  York City Police Department, why is there a clock

         19  that can't be repaired in a year and a half?

         20                 In addition, the mailing list that

         21  was supposed to be sent out to tenant leaders, okay,

         22  since the merger the New York City Police Department

         23  refuses to use the postage unit of the mail and

         24  distributing unit to mail out notices.

         25                 Prior to the merger, the New York
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          2  City Housing Authority and the New York City Housing

          3  Police Department have borne the cost, okay?

          4                 The Housing Authority is in complete

          5  disarray. I would like to surface to you, if you go

          6  across the bridge at Whitman, Ingersol and Farragat

          7  Houses, you will see lights --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Your time has

          9  expired, Mr. Garver. Conclude please.

         10                 MR. GARVER: I would like to say that

         11  the City Council should have an entire oversight

         12  Mollen Commission hearing on what is wrong in the

         13  New York City Housing Authority. There is a lot

         14  wrong. I will be glad to meet with a staff member

         15  afterwards and give you more details.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, I thank

         17  you for taking your time to share this information

         18  with us today.

         19                 Ms. Robinson.

         20                 MS. ROBINSON: Yes, Louana Robinson,

         21  formerly the Chair of Hamilton Heights Tenant

         22  Association.

         23                 I am a firm believer in people and

         24  residents and City agencies working together. I am

         25  retired but I got a letter from Robert Anthony, that
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          2  said, "we wish to thank you for furnishing" -- in

          3  answer to a complaint I made, "we wish to thank you

          4  for furnishing us with this information. We

          5  appreciate receiving complaints because they assist

          6  us in identifying problem areas targeting

          7  enforcement and regulatory activities."

          8                 So that convinced me I should be here

          9  telling you about my problem.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you for

         11  coming.

         12                 MS. ROBINSON: Many years ago, in

         13  '78/'79, I wrote 15 budget requests and 14 were

         14  granted, the only one that wasn't granted was the

         15  one asking for consciousness raising costs for the

         16  police of the 30th Precinct, but however, Koch did

         17  call me and explain to me why he wasn't granting

         18  that. But the most important one was asking that

         19  Hamilton Heights become a neighborhood strategy

         20  area.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Hamilton Heights

         22  is located? For the benefit of the Committee.

         23                 MS. ROBINSON: It used to be called

         24  Lower Washington Heights and we did research when I

         25  was --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What are the

          3  boundaries of it?

          4                 MS. ROBINSON: 155th Street to 140th

          5  Street, Riverside Drive, St. Nicolas, Edgecombe.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: This north of

          8  City College.

          9                 MS. ROBINSON: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Trinity

         11  Cemetery.

         12                 MS. ROBINSON: I beg your pardon?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Trinity

         14  Cemetery to the north.

         15                 MS. ROBINSON: Right. I asked when I

         16  was a volunteer at City Hall, I asked the director

         17  when are you going to start work below 155th Street

         18  and she said we are not touching it, the City is

         19  giving up on that area. I was dumbfounded, so we

         20  started beautification programs, and previous to

         21  that I had gotten a fountain moved from the curve.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Good for you.

         23                 MS. ROBINSON: Anyhow, we had

         24  beautification, and then we started housing. And as

         25  a result of this, I became district leader, but as a
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          2  result of this request that Hamilton Heights be

          3  designated the neighborhood strategy area, 32

          4  buildings we either renovated or replaced by new

          5  construction, and according to the guidelines the

          6  developers could get money from HUD, mortgage money,

          7  and they had to put a certain percentage of that in

          8  escrow with HPD, and here is the guidelines.

          9                 The following guidelines were: That

         10  developers benefit the community in which their

         11  projects are located by using a share of the

         12  proceeds of the sale of the syndication, that is

         13  syndication agreement money, for physical

         14  development of the local area and other related

         15  uses.

         16                 This current Commissioner has decided

         17  to give the $995,000 that is supposed to come back

         18  to Hamilton Heights to housing all over the City,

         19  that is his letter to me.

         20                 The community board has convinced him

         21  to give them $600,000 for a park across from Grants

         22  Tomb, which is Morningside Heights. Are board is

         23  controlled by Morningside Heights.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I can see the

         25  conflict.
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          2                 MS. ROBINSON: I am trying to refrain

          3  from saying what I really want to say.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Please do.

          5                 MS. ROBINSON: But anyway, we want

          6  this money in Hamilton Heights.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, your

          8  Councilman is sitting here, at least for a portion

          9  of it. Council Member Michels tells me that that is

         10  his district, and I am certain you can meet and talk

         11  with him.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Louana and I

         13  have worked together for many years.

         14                 MS. ROBINSON: I have one more

         15  pressing problem. I sold a building, I used to be a

         16  7A, and I have taken six buildings off the order to

         17  vacate list. I had a radio program for four years

         18  telling HPD what to do, and they used to listen. But

         19  I now live in a building where six bricks are

         20  falling down. Here is a picture of it, and I have

         21  been working on it since 1985, letters to the

         22  Commissioner -- now, what is happening in the

         23  subway, rusty pillars, and how can we get them -- I

         24  call them the department of bundlings, the

         25  Department of Buildings, they served me with a
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          2  hearing notice naming me the complainant and the

          3  defendant.  I won't go into detail about that, I

          4  still haven't gotten my $350 they fined me, but

          5  anyway, when I talked to the Department of Buildings

          6  last week, now I am worried about the board

          7  separating from the wall, the cracks, the window

          8  frame separating from the walls and things like

          9  that, and he said well we are just going to have to

         10  tear it down.

         11                 Did you hear me? The Commissioner

         12  tells me well we are just going to have to tear the

         13  building down. I mean, that is not right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Ms. Robinson --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You are

         16  absolutely right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Ms. Robinson, we

         18  share your concern. If you will meet with Council

         19  Member Michels at his district office, I am certain

         20  that he will address these problems.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr. Spigner

         22  has promised to come up to the district offices when

         23  we have that meeting.

         24                 MS. ROBINSON: When?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Mr. Spigner
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          2  said he would come to my district office.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: If there is a

          4  need and you feel I can be of help, I certainly will

          5  join you.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 Thank you, Ms. Robinson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Moving back to

         10  those persons who were called again, Andy Scherer,

         11  is he here? Oh, he testified.

         12                 Jenny Laurie.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Jenny. There

         14  she is. I didn't even see her there.

         15                 MS. LAURIE: My name is Jenny Laurie,

         16  I am the Director of Met Council on Housing, which

         17  is a Citywide tenants rights organization.

         18                 I was here earlier this morning and I

         19  listened to Commissioner Roberts' testimony on the

         20  HPD's, the Preliminary Budget for HPD, and I would

         21  like to address my remarks simply to the issue of

         22  code enforcement, and the number of inspectors.

         23                 Last year, as you know, City Council

         24  had a battle with the Mayor over the addition of 78

         25  housing inspectors, and through the Mayor's veto and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS PUBLIC SESSION

          2  the renegotiations after the empowerment of the

          3  funds, the City and the Council agreed to, the Mayor

          4  and the Council agreed to lower the number to 12

          5  inspectors.

          6                 Commissioner Roberts testified this

          7  morning that they are trying to get up to 240

          8  inspector and I would urge the Council to go back at

          9  least to a minimum of adding 75 more inspectors.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We put money in

         11  the budget and they didn't utilize it.

         12                 MS. LAURIE: I know. I realize that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So,

         14  unfortunately the Executive Branch still has a lot

         15  of influence on the final utilization of the funds.

         16  That is why we go to court.

         17                 MS. LAURIE: My understanding is,

         18  though, and correct me if I am wrong, is that in the

         19  negotiations after the veto and after the

         20  empowerment, there was a negotiated settlement, and

         21  the Council agreed --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Twelve?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is what

         24  came out.

         25                 MS. LAURIE: That is what an informant
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          2  told me.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: We never

          4  agreed to 12.

          5                 MS. LAURIE: Well, you had a pot of

          6  money, there was an agreement that HPD would hire 12

          7  additional inspectors, a certain number of

          8  additional Housing Litigation Bureau lawyers and the

          9  rest of the money would go into emergency repair.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They did it

         11  but we didn't agree to it.

         12                 MS. LAURIE: Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It doesn't serve

         14  any purpose to say whether we agreed or not.

         15  Sometimes things happen, let's try to be

         16  prospective.

         17                 MS. LAURIE: Well, however it fell

         18  out, I would urge that the Council go back to at a

         19  minimum asking, basically demanding that the 75

         20  inspectors, which was I imagine Speaker Vallone's

         21  original request, that that be added back into the

         22  budget this year. Even at 240 inspectors, which is

         23  what Commissioner Roberts said he was looking to

         24  get, that is ridiculously low, the number of

         25  inspectors, and I heard his comments that the
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          2  inspection force is adequate and this be asked. And

          3  I don't have to tell anyone that in this room. I was

          4  just back in my office for an hour. A woman called

          5  from 196th Street and Broadway, your district,

          6  Stanley, she and her six-month-old baby are living

          7  in an apartment building with 40 or 50 units, they

          8  haven't had heat and hot water for three days. She

          9  said she must have called the emergency, the

         10  960-4800 at least -- she said I must have called

         11  them 100 times. We referred her to your office.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Good.

         13                 MS. LAURIE: So they say they have

         14  enough inspectors and they have enough people at the

         15  central complaints office is just garbage.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Her testimony

         17  was it was 24 to 48 hours and unresponsive.

         18                 If you remember, one of the things I

         19  asked for them --

         20                 MS. LAURIE: That is just on heat and

         21  hot water. What about cascading leaks, lead paint,

         22  all of these are very serious violations.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I tried to

         24  get them on heat and hot water and then I said to

         25  them, I am starting to get from them a time line on

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            26

          1  HOUSING AND BUILDINGS PUBLIC SESSION

          2  inspector and the time situation.

          3                 MS. LAURIE: I heard him answer your

          4  question and say that basically HPD had no idea how

          5  long it took, and between receiving a complaint and

          6  responding to that complaint with an inspector.

          7                 And then for the Commissioner to say

          8  they have adequate number of inspectors after saying

          9  something like that is absolutely ridiculous.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, we do

         11  it with other agencies, like the Police Department

         12  and other agencies like that and I think it is about

         13  time we did it with HPD, and they will tell you

         14  whether they have enough inspectors.

         15                 MS. LAURIE: Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: If they have

         17  got weeks without responding to the complaint, then

         18  we have a real problem.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Continue,

         20  please, with your testimony.

         21                 MS. LAURIE: The other issue, of

         22  course, is the number of attorneys in the Housing

         23  Litigation Bureau. There was a report last year that

         24  they had only filled 17 positions of the 38 that

         25  they had in their budget. The Commissioner testified
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          2  that they now have 26 attorneys. Just having, just

          3  recently in the last couple of weeks I think he said

          4  hired nine new attorneys, including three new per

          5  diems which I have also heard through the grapevine

          6  are not well trained and not good attorneys.

          7                 So, I think the issue who these per

          8  diem workers are and how they are trained and where

          9  they come from needs to be looked into.

         10                 Someone in their litigation unit told

         11  us that the three new attorneys, the per diem

         12  attorneys are as good as having no new attorneys in

         13  that bureau. So I think that that needs to be looked

         14  into.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well,

         16  unfortunately they make the determination as to the

         17  quality of the attorneys.

         18                 MS. LAURIE: Well, the Council has

         19  oversight powers, as you know. And you have a lot of

         20  power over the budget and I think the Council did an

         21  excellent job last year in fighting with the Mayor

         22  over the budget, not just the budget and the things

         23  that you wanted to spend money on, but also on how

         24  the Mayor spends the money and how the Mayor's

         25  agency spent the money. And you are to be commended
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          2  on that. I think you did a wonderful job on that,

          3  and I would like to see that fight go on.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

          5                 MS. LAURIE: You know, I have another

          6  horror story that just came up in the last week. A

          7  building also in Harlem on 140th Street, where the

          8  building has had hundreds of violations over, and I

          9  have been working with the tenants there and have

         10  known about the building for five years, hundreds of

         11  violations. They have had repeated referrals to

         12  emergency repair for scolding hot water. In other

         13  words, when they turn on the water the water is over

         14  200 degrees and no cold water coming out.

         15                 About a week and a half ago, a

         16  ten-year-old child in the building fell into the tub

         17  that he was filling himself, slipped on the edge of

         18  the tub because it was covered with steam, he has

         19  second and third degree burns over 40 percent of his

         20  body after having fallen into water that was over

         21  200 degrees in the bathtub.

         22                 This is the building that has, and as

         23  far as I know, I don't know how long the violation

         24  has been, but over a year emergency repair referrals

         25  on this building. This building has been in the
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          2  Litigation Housing Bureau for at least two or three

          3  years, they have had several HPD initiated actions

          4  against the landlord, never filed a contempt

          5  hearing, never been a contempt hearing on the

          6  building, no attempt to bring this landlord, it has

          7  been the same landlord for all of these -- for many

          8  years, you know, into jail, into paying any fines,

          9  nothing. You know, just slap the landlord's wrist

         10  and let it go. The result in this situation is a

         11  real tragedy and it is not a classic heat and hot

         12  water complaint, but it is an emergency repair

         13  referral and it is a Class C violation.

         14                 I would urge the Council to go to bat

         15  on these two issues, the Housing Litigation Bureau

         16  needs more attorneys, they need to be full time,

         17  salaried, you know, not per diem, untrained

         18  attorneys, who can take landlords to court who

         19  aren't following the rules and we need more housing

         20  code inspectors.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We will keep the

         22  pressure on.

         23                 MS. LAUREL: Thanks very much.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank for

         25  coming.
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          2                 Let me ask you a question.

          3                 MS. LAUREL: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You seem to

          5  be familiar with it. In a statement, and I really am

          6  remiss because I should have asked him this question

          7  when he was giving a statement, he refers to the

          8  Housing Litigation Bureau, and then he referred also

          9  to a landlord/tenant litigation division. Is that a

         10  separate group there or something new they set up?

         11                 MS. LAUREL: Well, you know, they have

         12  their separate group of attorneys that are in

         13  Housing Court.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They are

         15  linked in here as if they are two different groups

         16  of attorneys.

         17                 MS. LAUREL: My guess is he is talking

         18  about the attorneys who are in Housing Court, but I

         19  have no idea.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I assume they

         21  are all part of the Housing Litigation Bureau.

         22                 MS. LAUREL: There are some attorneys

         23  who are in the HP parts of the Housing Court all the

         24  time and who assist tenants who are filing their own

         25  HP actions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But these are

          3  all part of the Housing Litigation Bureau?

          4                 MS. LAUREL: Yes. Yes, as far as I

          5  know.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: They are just

          7  a division of the Housing Litigation Bureau.

          8                 MS. LAUREL: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So the

         10  numbers we are talking, there is not an additional

         11  number?

         12                 MS. LAUREL: I don't think so. I think

         13  it is all one giant, giant pot.

         14                 He was vague on a number of the

         15  numbers and I can't quite figure out when he was

         16  talking about the nine new attorneys, exactly where

         17  they were.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But you will

         19  help us to identify them, and we will work together

         20  as we move forward with the process.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: The fact of

         22  the matter is we do need more, which has been raised

         23  a number of times --

         24                 MS. LAUREL: Absolutely.

         25                 And in fact, I was a little dismayed
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          2  by the Commissioner going on and on about how they

          3  were going to work with landlords to try to give

          4  them loans, do this and do that, to try to get them

          5  to correct the violations on their own, when they

          6  have these glaring examples of landlords who have

          7  been violating the housing code for years and have

          8  gotten away with it.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         11                 Kevin Ryan, Anne Pasmanack, Jackie

         12  Richardson, all with the Community Training and

         13  Resource Center.

         14                 MS. PASMANACK: Thank you for the

         15  opportunity to speak at this preliminary budget

         16  hearing. We heard the Commissioner's remarks this

         17  morning. We wanted to start by thanking you for the

         18  work that you did in bringing money to the citizens

         19  of New York for the Community Consultant Program and

         20  the landlord training program, which we are right

         21  now operating Citywide.

         22                 We have had to do that in a

         23  dramatically short period of time, and we have done

         24  that in a very bad business practice without an

         25  approved budget or assigned contract.
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          2                 This is the City of New York and

          3  apparently that is the way we are required to

          4  operate.

          5                 I did come also from a meeting this

          6  morning that HPD held to discuss the community

          7  consultant program to begin the process of enabling

          8  groups to voucher for their money two-thirds of the

          9  way into the fiscal year, and I think it is very

         10  relevant to this Committee, because the Mayor's

         11  Office On Contracts is now requiring of groups doing

         12  business with the City a very new way of budgeting

         13  for funding, a way that is very unfamiliar for many

         14  of the groups and which I think will cause some

         15  distinct challenges and I am sure many of them who

         16  are your constituents will be coming to you and

         17  asking for some guidance with it.

         18                 A week ago we were a part of a

         19  hearing that was held by the Subcommittee on Housing

         20  and Abandonment and Foreclosure, and it was a

         21  hearing on the issue of weatherization. Mike

         22  Fallager (phonetic) worked with us on that campaign,

         23  and I think we were able to put together some really

         24  important information about ways to actually

         25  preserve and improve the City's private housing
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          2  stock.

          3                 I am hoping that this Committee will

          4  take that issue up again and allow those

          5  weatherization providers to come and talk more about

          6  their vision from making the City better.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is a

          8  state-funded program or federally-funded program?

          9                 MS. PASMANACK: It is a federally

         10  funded program which is now state administered. It

         11  does not have City funding attached to it, nor does

         12  it have City input in terms of where the money goes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So what role do

         14  we play?

         15                 MS. PASMANACK: Well, I love the role

         16  that you play to be supporting energy audits for

         17  some of these very low-end owners in low and

         18  moderate-income neighborhoods.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Meaning what?

         20                 MS. PASMANACK: Meaning having

         21  technicians, having technical people come in and

         22  diagnose --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Who is going to

         24  pay for them?

         25                 MS. PASMANACK: Well, the City of New
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          2  York is, of course.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          4                 In other words, you want money?

          5                 MS. PASMANACK: We want money. Not for

          6  us.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I understand

          8  that. How much is needed?

          9                 MR. RYAN: We are speaking of in the

         10  initial stages a pilot program funded about $6

         11  million, just to show how these services can provide

         12  owners with very efficient buildings and can proceed

         13  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What would you

         15  buy with the $6 million? The machinery and the --

         16                 MR. RYAN: The $6 million would go

         17  towards hiring technical consultants who would

         18  provide these energy audits for small property

         19  owners.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That's a lot of

         21  consultants.

         22                 MS. PASMANACK: They already exist.

         23  These people already exist. They are with

         24  organizations like the Community Environmental

         25  Center.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I don't deny

          3  that they exist, but that could buy a lot of

          4  consultants.

          5                 MS. PASMANACK: Well, they are already

          6  there. It is really just a matter of deciding

          7  whether it is useful to try to make existing housing

          8  stock cost and energy efficient.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: This would be a

         10  Council initiative, $6 million?

         11                 MS. PASMANACK: Right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Duly noted.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 Anything else?

         15                 MS. PASMANACK: Yes. The landlord

         16  program that we operate is for landlords who operate

         17  very marginally in often marginal neighborhoods, and

         18  the education --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And they are

         20  marginal landlords, right?

         21                 MS. PASMANACK: Yes, they are.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Operating

         23  marginally in marginal neighborhoods.

         24                 MS. PASMANACK: Yes they are.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Life is tough.
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          2                 MS. PASMANACK: And what that means is

          3  that --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The landlords,

          5  as well as those living in those buildings.

          6                 MS. PASMANACK: It is tough for

          7  everybody.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That's right.

          9                 MS. PASMANACK: And it's a tough

         10  program because we are trying to bring information

         11  to people that they are unaware of that they can

         12  apply so that their tenants won't freeze, so that

         13  their buildings are operable, both in their tenure

         14  and during somebody else's.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And that is the

         16  program you made reference to when you opened your

         17  testimony, right?

         18                 MS. PASMANACK: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How is it going?

         20                 MS. PASMANACK: It is going very well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do you have any

         22  tangible results to show to justify the Council's

         23  expenditures?

         24                 MS. PASMANACK: We do indeed. We have

         25  landlords who are actually, although coming in, a
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          2  little bit unhappy to be with us in lieu of a fine,

          3  which is what they are offered. In these nine hours

          4  of instruction they are getting enough technical

          5  information and support and information about

          6  resources that they are applying some of what they

          7  are learning during that nine hours.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Would the

          9  Committee be allowed to sit in on one of these

         10  nine-hour sessions?

         11                 MS. PASMANACK: Any time they would

         12  like to. And everybody who has been in that room,

         13  which is in each of the boroughs, has experienced

         14  the kind of good information, the quality

         15  information and the responsiveness of those tenants.

         16                 This is a largely immigrant group

         17  that comes, 84 percent from our last 100 owners who

         18  attended were immigrants.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, this is an

         20  example of what the new struggling landlord class

         21  is, is mostly immigrants.

         22                 MS. PASMANACK: Yes. And by virtue of

         23  their struggle, their tenants are also struggling

         24  and so are the neighborhoods in ways that we all can

         25  understand and identify with, and I think what we
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          2  are trying to do now is make them function properly.

          3  Instead of writing them a fine, which has not been

          4  very useful in getting them to perform better, we

          5  are saying learn some information and apply it and

          6  we are going to hold you to a higher standard.

          7                 When the Commissioner spoke earlier

          8  about the litigation unit, the litigation unit is a

          9  partner with us in this effort because they have to

         10  sue those owners and distinguish between the bad

         11  operators and the incompetent but the operators.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: What about HPD

         13  or the Mayor's Office? Have you discussed this

         14  concept, energy audit, weatherization $6 million

         15  concept with them?

         16                 MS. PASMANACK: We are just beginning

         17  to discuss that with them.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Because it would

         19  be helpful if you could convince them to include it

         20  in the executive budget.

         21                 MS. PASMANACK: Yes, it would, and

         22  that would be our first effort and our best hope.

         23  Unfortunately, they did not show up for the hearing.

         24  I think for an agency that is having a lot of

         25  meetings every day about anti-abandonment and
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          2  express those sentiments very often, they should

          3  really consider this as an option that would

          4  maximize their efforts.

          5                 I mean, we are talking about a very

          6  tangible way of saving housing and making it work.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, at a more

          8  informal opportunity, you will expose the members of

          9  the Committee to details of this proposal and we

         10  will take a good look at it.

         11                 MS. PASMANACK: Okay, that would be

         12  wonderful.

         13                 Just as a small update on just a

         14  couple of items and then we are done.

         15                 The landlord training program is

         16  operational. You are very welcome to attend it and

         17  see how it works.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And we shall.

         19                 MS. PASMANACK: We are very happy to

         20  be working with the co-trainers and getting these

         21  owners and noting the lack of recidivism of

         22  violation among the original owners that attended,

         23  that is really the proof of our efforts.

         24                 The community consultant program we

         25  hope will move ahead, as we hope will the
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          2  neighborhood preservation groups. But right now I

          3  think it is important to note that that program is

          4  not operating. Groups from the previous funded year

          5  are still active and being renewed and contract on a

          6  monthly basis, none of these contracts have been

          7  registered and we are two-thirds into the fiscal

          8  year.

          9                 So, if there is to be an

         10  anti-abandonment program --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Go to court.

         12  That is where we go when these guys do not respond

         13  as we feel they should, we go to court.

         14                 MS. PASMANACK: Well, we don't really

         15  have the resources to go to court, but we have the

         16  resources to come to you and say as partners in this

         17  something has got to move. The program has got to

         18  move from the paper into the neighborhoods.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: This is our

         20  money, since it is money that we put in --

         21                 MS. PASMANACK: Yes.  And the

         22  neighborhood preservation money is money that the

         23  Mayor wanted to commit to this program. It is hard

         24  to understand why it is not able to move forward and

         25  do something.
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          2                 So, right now there is a lot of

          3  activity in meeting and talking about

          4  anti-abandonment, but there is not a lot of activity

          5  towards that end.

          6                 I agree with the previous remarks

          7  that we need a fully staffed inspection unit, we

          8  need a fully staffed litigation unit. We don't have

          9  those right now and hopefully the agency will be

         10  willing to articulate themselves that they need

         11  these things because it would seem to be the first

         12  step towards obtaining them.

         13                 So, again, we are happy to continue

         14  to work with you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Sometimes they

         16  leave it to you and to me to speak to their needs

         17  and they play whatever little game it is that they

         18  play. But they know that we speak the truth.

         19                 MS. PASMANACK: They do indeed. We are

         20  sort of at cross purposes because on the one hand we

         21  need the City of New York to work with us in order

         22  to make the landlord training program work, which we

         23  think is a way of making heat go on in the winter

         24  for poor tenants, but we can't really make that

         25  happen --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I support you

          3  fully.

          4                 MS. PASMANACK: Oh, I know. I know and

          5  I thank you for that. We just can't really make it

          6  happen in the way that they should, unless agencies

          7  are ready to go into court and to sue in each

          8  borough to the extent that it needs to be done.

          9                 That is not being done now because

         10  there aren't enough inspectors to inspect, to bring

         11  those violations to our intention, and there aren't

         12  enough litigators to go out and litigate and make

         13  those cases a public concern. And so in order to

         14  educate and in order to press anti-abandonment, you

         15  have to have a functioning staff with an agreed upon

         16  set of strategies and programs. I think we are still

         17  lacking in that area and I hope that we will help to

         18  make that function at a better level.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Sure will.

         20                 MS. PASMANACK: And thank you, again,

         21  very much for the support.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you for

         23  taking the time and having the patience to share

         24  with us, as always, your constructive views and

         25  suggestions.
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          2                 MS. PASMANACK: Can I just say that

          3  Jacqueline Richardson is now coordinating the

          4  expansion of the landlord training program in all of

          5  the boroughs and has exposure to all of these owners

          6  and to some extent to their tenants and their

          7  communities and is able to see in real life how this

          8  is playing out, both in terms of a project, which

          9  again we have not yet been paid for, but we are well

         10  into accruing the expenses for it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I will await

         12  your invitation and I certainly will be there.

         13                 Kathleen Breen and Andrew Goldberg,

         14  the last witnesses at today's meeting.

         15                 Yes, if you will identify yourselves.

         16                 MS. BREEN: Sure. Good afternoon. My

         17  name is Kathleen Breen, I am the City Legislative

         18  Advocate for the New York Public Interest Research

         19  Group, NYPIRG. Andrew Goldberg is Counsel to NYPIRG.

         20                 We have submitted testimony today and

         21  in the interest of time I am going to just go

         22  through some of the key points of this testimony, as

         23  opposed to reading the whole thing. We know that you

         24  will read it in its entirety.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You bet.
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          2                 MS. BREEN: As such, I will go to the

          3  point that we would like to make.

          4                 Starting out, this weekend we

          5  attended an environmental justice meeting organized

          6  by the White House Council on Environmental Quality,

          7  which was organized to hear community concern about

          8  environmental inequality and injustice.

          9                 In the housing group we heard an

         10  outcry from tenants whose children and other family

         11  members are the constant victims of indoor hazards,

         12  such as respiratory disease and lead poisoning,

         13  arising from inadequate housing maintenance by their

         14  landlords.

         15                 We therefore must express our utter

         16  dismay about the fact that HPD refused to spend

         17  funds appropriated by this Council that are intended

         18  to significantly improve housing inspection and code

         19  enforcement --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Were you here

         21  earlier this morning when --

         22                 MS. BREEN: We were here earlier this

         23  morning.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How does this

         25  statement square with Commissioner Roberts'
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          2  announcements?

          3                 MR. GOLDBERG: Well, Mr. Chairman, we

          4  looked at the --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Your name, sir.

          6                 MR. GOLDBERG: Andrew Goldberg.

          7                 MS. BREEN: Andrew Goldberg.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I know that, I

          9  needed to say it for the record.

         10                 MR. GOLDBERG: We heard some of the

         11  numbers that the Commissioner gave today. For

         12  example, he said that $44 million is going to be

         13  spent on lead abatement, and we assume a large

         14  portion of that will go into code enforcement

         15  inspection. None of that was set forth in the

         16  preliminary management report. So when we looked at

         17  the preliminary management report, they have for the

         18  first four months of this year budgeted 86

         19  inspection teams and then 85 for next year. So, you

         20  know, we had to assume in preparing our testimony

         21  that they were intending to not spend the money.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         23                 You may proceed, Mrs. Breen.

         24                 MS. BREEN: Nevertheless, NYPIRG

         25  testified at these hearings before the Committee in
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          2  December of '98. We testified about HPD's failure to

          3  comply with the Freedom of Information request that

          4  we had made on October 30th of that same year, to

          5  review all data, studies, records, financial

          6  analysis, memoranda and reports relating to HPD's

          7  lead poisoning prevention program. We sadly report

          8  that to this day we have -- HPD has yet to fully

          9  comply with that request.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Go to court,

         11  Andrew Goldberg.

         12                 MR. GOLDBERG: You told us that last

         13  time.

         14                 MS. BREEN: We are putting it on the

         15  record again. We again urge the Committee to take --

         16                 MR. GOLDBERG: We would like to ask

         17  this Committee, as part of its review of the budget,

         18  to inquire about the agency' compliance of the

         19  freedom of information law.

         20                 If they are saying --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I guess by

         22  extension you can make that a part of the budget

         23  process, if you can't acquire information.

         24                 MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. If they are saying

         25  that their inability is a staffing problem, and as
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          2  you know, I think when I testified last time I

          3  explained that they said they would need time to

          4  look here and there in the agency to find documents.

          5  We haven't received any response since then. But if

          6  it is a staffing problem, or is it just a refusal to

          7  comply with the law? I think in the context of this

          8  budgetary hearing, that that is a fair area of

          9  inquiry.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Duly noted.

         11                 MS. BREEN: With respect to this

         12  morning's testimony from Commissioner Roberts, we

         13  were dismayed that on one hand he emphasizes

         14  agencies' intention to allocate an additional 44

         15  million in expense and capital funding to lead

         16  paint. While on the other hand, he could not explain

         17  how HPD intended to spend this money.

         18                 While we support this increase, we

         19  support the Council's concern, as expressed earlier

         20  by Council Member Robles, that HPD explain as soon

         21  as possible how and when it intends to use this

         22  appropriation.

         23                 More importantly, we assume that

         24  HPD's Commissioner statement that 44 million in new

         25  appropriations is needed to address lead poisoning
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          2  maintenance, that this money will be used to

          3  implement a legislative compromise, such as Intro.

          4  205, which is the only childhood poisoning

          5  prevention bill before the City Council.

          6                 We thank you for this opportunity and

          7  look forward to working with you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: As always, we

          9  thank NYPIRG as an organization, and you as

         10  individuals for your time and your input into this

         11  process.

         12                 There being no other witnesses or

         13  questions from the Council members at this time --

         14  before we adjourn, we are leaving the vote open on

         15  198-B and the accompanying resolution for

         16  specifically those members who were here earlier

         17  when the Chair was late, and this is to accommodate

         18  them -- this meeting is now adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 2:45 p.m.)
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